

**ADOPTED REGULATION OF THE  
STATE QUARANTINE OFFICER**

**LCB File No. R003-23**

EXPLANATION – Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets ~~[omitted material]~~ is material to be omitted.

AUTHORITY: §§ 1-11, 15-27, 30-54, NRS 583.055 and 583.539; § 12, NRS 561.153, 583.055, 583.453 and 583.539; §§ 13, 28 and 29, NRS 561.153, 583.055, 583.454 and 583.539; § 14, NRS 561.153, 583.055, 583.453, 583.454 and 583.539.

A REGULATION relating to meat and poultry inspection; defining certain terms relating to meat and poultry inspections; establishing requirements for a person to obtain a permit to operate an official establishment; establishing requirements for a person to obtain a license to operate a custom processing establishment or a mobile processing unit; establishing certain fees relating to official establishments, custom processing establishments and mobile processing units; setting forth certain requirements relating to custom processing; establishing certain sanitary requirements for such establishments and units; revising certain requirements related to the processing of meat and poultry; eliminating certain obsolete references; revising references to certain federal regulations adopted by reference; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

**Legislative Counsel's Digest:**

Existing law authorizes the State Quarantine Officer, under certain circumstances, to prescribe by regulation conditions under which carcasses, parts of carcasses, meat and meat food products of poultry and certain other animals capable of use as human food, must be stored or otherwise handled for intrastate commerce. (NRS 583.539) Existing law authorizes the director of the State Department of Agriculture to prescribe by regulation fees to cover costs incurred for any service provided by the Department. (NRS 561.153)

Existing law further requires the Officer to adopt regulations providing a process for a person to obtain a permit to operate an official establishment which on a commercial basis slaughters for hire any meat animal, game mammal, poultry or game bird for human consumption. (NRS 583.453) Existing law authorizes the Department to establish fees to be collected from slaughtering or other processing operations for the purpose of grading and certifying meats, prepared meats and meat products. (NRS 583.055) **Section 12** of this regulation: (1) requires a person who wishes to operate an official establishment to submit an application for a permit to the Department; (2) establishes fees to obtain or renew a permit; (3) requires the applicant to submit certain plans for the construction of the official establishment

covered by the permit, under certain circumstances; (4) establishes a fee for the review of such plans by the Department; and (5) establishes certain provisions governing such a permit.

Existing law requires the Officer to adopt regulations providing a process for a person to obtain a license to operate a custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit, including, without limitation, regulations setting forth fees for the issuance or renewal of such a license. (NRS 583.454) **Section 13** of this regulation: (1) requires a person who wishes to operate a custom processing establishment or a mobile processing unit to submit an application for a license to the Department; (2) establishes fees to obtain or renew a license; (3) requires the applicant to submit certain plans for the construction of the custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit covered by the license, under certain circumstances; (4) establishes a fee for the review of such plans by the Department; and (5) establishes certain provisions governing such a license.

**Section 14** of this regulation requires a holder of a permit or license to operate an official establishment, custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit who intends to remodel, renovate or alter the official establishment, custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit, as applicable, to, before performing any such work, submit to the Department: (1) a plan detailing the proposed changes; and (2) a fee for the review of the plan by the Department.

**Section 15** of this regulation: (1) authorizes, with certain exceptions, the Department to grant inspection services to each person issued a permit or license to operate an official establishment, a custom processing establishment or a mobile processing unit if the permittee or licensee satisfies certain requirements; (2) requires the Department to notify a permittee or licensee if the Department grants inspection services to such a person; and (3) requires the Department to, at least once each year, perform an inspection of each custom processing establishment and mobile processing unit that a licensee is authorized to operate.

**Sections 16 and 17** of this regulation establish certain requirements for the construction, design and use of a mobile processing unit.

Existing regulations require the Officer to order inspections of the sanitary conditions of certain establishments. (NAC 583.430) **Section 44** of this regulation: (1) requires custom processing establishments and mobile processing units to be kept in a clean and sanitary condition; (2) authorizes the Department to prescribe additional sanitary standards and require sanitary inspections of custom processing establishments and mobile processing units; and (3) authorizes the Officer or the Department to withdraw inspection services for custom processing establishments and mobile processing units that do not comply with such sanitary standards.

**Sections 18-21** of this regulation establish various requirements relating to the sanitization procedures used and the handling of certain food products in a mobile processing unit.

**Section 22** of this regulation requires a custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit to comply with certain provisions of federal law.

**Section 23** of this regulation requires a person who holds a license to operate a custom processing establishment to: (1) tag each carcass, meat or poultry and the parts therefrom as "Not For Sale"; and (2) keep products for custom processing separate from other products subject to inspection.

**Section 24** of this regulation requires an inspector to mark certain equipment, utensils, rooms or compartments that are not sanitary or could adulterate a product with a “Nevada Rejected” tag.

**Section 25** of this regulation authorizes the Department to detain or embargo meat or poultry in a custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit if the meat or poultry does not: (1) have proper identification; or (2) comply with certain requirements.

**Section 26** of this regulation requires each person issued a permit or license to operate an official establishment, custom processing establishment or a mobile processing unit to comply with certain federal laws relating to humane methods of slaughter.

**Section 27** of this regulation: (1) requires each person issued a license to operate a custom processing establishment or a mobile processing unit to keep records in accordance with certain federal laws; and (2) authorizes the Department, at reasonable times, to access such records.

**Section 28** of this regulation: (1) authorizes the Department to issue a written warning to a person who holds a license to operate a custom processing establishment or a mobile processing unit if the person is suspected of committing certain repeated violations; (2) sets forth certain requirements for such a warning; and (3) authorizes the Department to perform an inspection to determine if the violation was corrected and charge a fee for such an inspection.

**Section 29** of this regulation authorizes: (1) the Department to suspend a license to operate a custom processing establishment or a mobile processing unit under certain circumstances; (2) a person whose license was suspended to request a hearing before the Department; and (3) the licensee to apply to the Department for reinstatement of the license.

**Section 29** also authorizes the Department to charge a fee for the reinstatement of a license.

Existing regulations require: (1) an antemortem examination of certain animals before slaughter; and (2) diseased animals and carcasses to be disposed of in accordance with certain federal regulations. (NAC 583.400) **Section 41** of this regulation instead requires: (1) each official establishment to ensure that an antemortem examination of certain animals is performed before slaughter; and (2) that any animal that is suspected of being infected with any disease or that shows symptoms of disease be kept separate and not be slaughtered until a veterinary inspection is performed.

Existing regulations require: (1) a postmortem examination and inspection of certain carcasses; (2) carcasses that are not adulterated to be labeled “Inspected and Passed”; and (3) carcasses that are adulterated to be labeled “Inspected and Condemned.” (NAC 583.410) **Section 42** of this regulation: (1) revises such labels to say “Nevada Inspected and Passed” and “Nevada Inspected and Condemned”; and (2) additionally requires that any meat or poultry which is not fit for human consumption to be denatured or destroyed, as approved by the Department.

**Sections 31, 34, 38, 49 and 52** of this regulation replace: (1) references to the State Board of Health with the Department; and (2) references to the State Health Officer with the State Quarantine Officer. **Section 54** of this regulation repeals an obsolete definition to the State Health Officer. **Sections 35-37 and 41** of this regulation make conforming changes to clarify certain references to the United States Department of Agriculture.

**Sections 32-34, 37, 39, 40, 42-46, 48, 50 and 53** of this regulation revise certain requirements relating to meat and meat food products to additionally apply to poultry and poultry food products.

**Sections 2-11** of this regulation define certain terms that relate to the inspection of meat and poultry.

Existing regulations set forth certain requirements for the packaging and labeling of certain meat and meat food products. (NAC 583.440) **Section 45** of this regulation additionally requires that: (1) custom processing products be labeled “Not For Sale”; and (2) shipping containers carrying certain poultry food products be labeled “Exempt P.L. 90492.”

Existing regulations adopt certain federal regulations of the United States Department of Agriculture. (NAC 583.520) **Section 52** adopts by reference, with certain exceptions, additional regulations adopted by the United States Department of Agriculture and certain federal laws.

Existing regulations establish certain exemptions to certain provisions of chapter 583 of the Nevada Administrative Code that govern meat and poultry inspection. (NAC 583.530) **Section 53** additionally adopts, with certain exceptions, certain exemptions established in federal law.

**Sections 30 and 51** of this regulation revise references to certain federal laws. **Section 51** eliminates an obsolete provision requiring the Officer to cooperate with the Secretary of Agriculture of the United States Department of Agriculture, by a certain date, in developing and administering the program for inspecting meat in this State.

**Section 1.** Chapter 583 of NAC is hereby amended by adding thereto the provisions set forth as sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation.

**Sec. 2.** *“Antemortem inspection” means the inspection of an animal before the animal is slaughtered.*

**Sec. 3.** *“Carcass” means each part, including viscera, of a slaughtered animal that is capable of use as human food.*

**Sec. 4.** *“Custom processing” means the slaughter, skinning and preparation of livestock and poultry through humane means upon the request of the owner or person in lawful possession of the livestock or poultry and for consumption by the owner or person, including, without limitation, immediate family members and nonpaying guests.*

**Sec. 5.** *“Equipment” has the meaning ascribed to it in NAC 446.01287.*

**Sec. 6.** *“Hazard” has the meaning ascribed to it in NAC 446.01461.*

Sec. 7. *“Inedible” means adulterated, uninspected or not intended for use as human food.*

Sec. 8. *“Mobile processing” means custom processing that is provided at a mobile processing unit.*

Sec. 9. *“Postmortem inspection” means the inspection of the carcass of an animal after the animal is slaughtered.*

Sec. 10. *“Poultry Products Inspection Act” means the federal Poultry Products Inspection Act, 21 U.S.C. §§ 451 et seq.*

Sec. 11. *“Specified risk material” means the tissues in cattle that are considered to be of high risk for prion contamination.*

Sec. 12. 1. *Pursuant to NRS 583.453, a person who wishes to operate an official establishment must apply for a permit on a form prescribed by the Department.*

2. *In addition to any information required by subsection 2 of NRS 583.453 for an application for a permit to operate an official establishment, an application for a permit to operate an official establishment must include, without limitation:*

*(a) The name of the business;*

*(b) The telephone number and electronic mail address of the applicant;*

*(c) An application fee of \$500; and*

*(d) Any other information required by the Department.*

3. *In addition to the requirements of subsection 2, a person who submits an application to operate an official establishment must, except as otherwise provided in subsection 6, submit to the Department:*

*(a) Plans for the construction of the official establishment, including, without limitation:*

*(1) The layout, arrangement and construction materials of processing areas in the official establishment;*

*(2) The location, size and types of equipment used in and around the official establishment; and*

*(3) The surrounding areas of the official establishment, including, without limitation, other businesses, streets, outside equipment, animal pens, wells and septic tanks; and*

*(b) A fee of \$750 for the review by the Department of the plans required by paragraph (a).*

*4. Upon receipt of an application submitted pursuant to this section, inspection of the official establishment and approval by the Department, the Officer will issue a permit to the applicant.*

*5. A permit issued pursuant to this section expires on December 31 of the year in which the permit was issued and must be renewed annually on or before December 31 by paying a permit renewal fee of \$500 to the Department.*

*6. A new application for a permit must be submitted pursuant to this section if there is a change of ownership or location. An application for a change of ownership is not subject to the requirements of subsection 3.*

**Sec. 13. 1.** *No person shall operate a custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit unless the Department has issued the person a license to operate the custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit pursuant to this section.*

*2. A person who wishes to operate a custom processing establishment or a mobile processing unit must apply for a license to operate a custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit on a form prescribed by the Department.*

*3. An application for a license to operate a custom processing establishment or a mobile processing unit must include, without limitation:*

*(a) The name of the applicant, including, without limitation, the names of the partners, officers or business directors, if applicable;*

*(b) The name of the business;*

*(c) The mailing address of the applicant;*

*(d) The telephone number and electronic mail address of the applicant;*

*(e) The location of the business;*

*(f) An application fee of \$250; and*

*(g) Any other information required by the Department.*

*4. In addition to the requirements of subsection 3, a person who submits an application to operate a custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit must, except as otherwise provided in subsection 7, submit to the Department:*

*(a) Plans for the construction of the custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit, including, without limitation:*

*(1) The layout, arrangement and construction materials of processing areas in the custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit;*

*(2) The location, size and types of equipment used in and around the custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit; and*

*(3) As applicable, the surrounding areas of the custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit, including, without limitation, other businesses, streets, outside equipment, animal pens, wells and septic tanks; and*

*(b) A fee of \$600 for the review by the Department of the plans required by paragraph (a).*

5. *Upon receipt of an application submitted pursuant to this section, inspection of the custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit and approval by the Department, the Officer will issue a license to the applicant.*

6. *A license issued pursuant to this section expires on December 31 of the year in which the license was issued and must be renewed annually on or before December 31 by paying a license renewal fee of \$250 to the Department.*

7. *A new application for a license must be submitted pursuant to this section if there is a change of ownership or location. An application for a change of ownership is not subject to the requirements of subsection 4.*

**Sec. 14.** *A holder of a permit or license to operate an official establishment, custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit who intends to remodel, renovate or alter the official establishment, custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit, as applicable, must, before he or she may perform any such work, submit to the Department a plan detailing the proposed changes to the official establishment, custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit, as applicable; and, as applicable:*

1. *A fee of \$750 for the review of the plan for an official establishment required by this section by the Department; or*

2. *A fee of \$600 for the review of the plan for a custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit required by this section by the Department.*

**Sec. 15.** 1. *Upon the issuance of a permit or license, the Department shall send a written notice to the permittee or licensee, as applicable, of the eligibility of the permittee or licensee to receive inspection services from the Department pursuant to subsection 3. The*



*notice must specify the areas of the official establishment, custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit to which the grant of inspection services will apply.*

*2. The Department shall issue a provisional grant of inspection services to the permittee or licensee, as applicable, for a period not to exceed 90 days for the permittee or licensee, as applicable, to develop and validate a Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point plan in accordance with 9 C.F.R. Part 417.*

*3. Except as otherwise provided in subsections 2 and 4, the Department may grant inspection services to each person issued a permit or license to operate an official establishment, custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit, as applicable, if the person has:*

*(a) Developed written standard operating procedures, written standard operating procedures for sanitation and written recall procedures; and*

*(b) Performed a hazard analysis and developed and validated a written Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point plan in accordance with 9 C.F.R. Part 417.*

*4. The Department shall not grant inspection services pursuant to subsection 3 if the Department determines that the official establishment, custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit has not complied with the provisions of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation or the applicant has not received approval for labeling pursuant to 9 C.F.R. Part 412.*

*5. Not less than once each year, the Department shall perform an inspection of each custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit that a licensee is authorized to operate in accordance with section 13 of this regulation.*

**Sec. 16. 1. A mobile processing unit must be constructed:**

- (a) To maintain a clean and sanitary condition;*
- (b) Of durable materials that are light in color, impervious and easy to clean; and*
- (c) To protect openings against the entry of dirt, debris, water and insects.*

*2. A mobile processing unit must have:*

*(a) Light bulbs that are shielded, coated or otherwise shatter-resistant in any areas where there may be exposed food, clean equipment, utensils, hand-washing, dressing and locker rooms or toilets.*

*(b) A minimum lighting intensity of 50 foot-candles (540 lux) at each surface where an employee may handle food, utensils or equipment, including, without limitation, knives, slicers, grinders and saws.*

*(c) Access to potable water from a:*

*(1) Potable water tank that is approved by the Department with a minimum capacity of 40 gallons for poultry processing or 10 gallons per head of livestock that may be processed based on the slaughter capacity of the mobile processing unit; or*

*(2) Potable water source that is immediately accessible at the operational site of the mobile processing unit. Before using such a potable water source, the operator of the mobile processing unit must submit to the Department a signed statement from the property owner of the operational site certifying that the water source is potable.*

*(d) A wastewater recovery tank that has a capacity that is at least 15 percent greater than the potable water tank or another method approved by the Department to catch blood and waste from slaughter that is performed outside of a mobile processing unit to avoid the contamination of any water sources or run off onto adjacent property.*

*(e) A sanitation container large enough to allow complete immersion of the tools used for sanitation.*

*(f) For all surfaces that will have direct contact with food products, smooth surfaces that do not contain pits, cracks, crevices, scale or rust. Such surfaces must be corrosion and abrasion resistant, nonabsorbent, shatterproof, nontoxic and not capable of entering into food products.*

*(g) Handwashing facilities that include, without limitation, running water that is hot and cold or running water that is hot and warm, soap and individual sanitary towels or another hand drying device that is approved by the Department. Handwashing facilities must be kept clean and in good repair.*

*(h) Access to toilet facilities.*

*(i) Adequate storage facilities for all nonmeat or nonpoultry products, including, without limitation, spices, paper products and utensils.*

*(j) If the mobile processing unit slaughters livestock, a lifting mechanism that is capable of lifting a carcass at least 12 inches above the ground. The lifting mechanism must be located in a place where any carcass suspended from the lifting mechanism does not touch the mobile processing unit, including, without limitation, a truck or trailer body that is part of the mobile processing unit.*

*(k) Cleaning agents and paper towels available at all times.*

**Sec. 17. 1. A potable water tank used in a mobile processing unit must:**

*(a) Be maintained in a sanitary condition;*

*(b) Only use potable water from a source that is approved by the Department; and*

*(c) Have a pump and hose system with a minimum pressure of 60 psi.*

*2. If the water used in a potable water tank is not from a municipal water system, the owner of the mobile processing unit shall submit the results of a test of the water to the Department that verifies the water does not contain coliforms.*

*3. If the mobile processing unit uses hot water for sanitation, the mobile processing unit must have a hot water source capable of heating water to at least 180 degrees Fahrenheit and a minimum capacity large enough to fill the sanitation container installed on the mobile processing unit.*

*4. A sanitization container must be filled with potable water during slaughter operations and maintain a water temperature of at least 180 degrees Fahrenheit or use approved chemicals to sterilize equipment. If approved chemicals are used in lieu of hot water heated to at least 180 degrees Fahrenheit, the mobile processing unit must have readily available at all times, hot water, cleaning agents, disinfectant and sanitizer test strips. As used in this subsection, "approved chemical" means chloramine, hypochlorite, quaternary ammonium compounds or any other chemical approved by the Department.*

*5. A mobile processing unit must dispose of wastewater at a dumping station or a location approved by the local health authority. The owner of the mobile processing unit shall provide written approval from the local health authority to the Department before disposing of wastewater.*

**Sec. 18.** *1. The equipment and utensils used in a mobile processing unit to handle edible food products must be:*

*(a) Constructed in such a manner and made of such materials to ensure the equipment and utensils may be thoroughly cleaned such that the equipment and utensils do not cause the adulteration of such edible food products; and*

*(b) Constructed, located and operated in such a manner that allows employees to inspect the equipment or utensils to determine the sanitary condition of such equipment or utensils.*

*2. All equipment and utensils used in a mobile processing unit must be:*

*(a) Maintained in a sanitary condition;*

*(b) Designed and installed to prevent contamination of edible food products by foreign materials, including, without limitation, lubricants, heat exchanger media, condensate, cleaning solutions, sanitizers and other nonfood materials; and*

*(c) Self-draining or designed to be cleared of water.*

*3. Any equipment in a mobile processing unit that uses a clean-in-place system must have sanitation procedures that are as complete and as effective as the procedures for cleaning and sanitizing disassembled equipment.*

**Sec. 19.** *A mobile processing unit that transports carcasses, meat or poultry that has not been inspected to an official establishment or custom processing establishment must:*

*1. Transport such carcasses, meat or poultry in a manner to prevent adulteration, misbranding or mislabeling;*

*2. Ensure that such carcasses, meat or poultry are refrigerated immediately after being eviscerated;*

*3. Ensure each carcass, meat or poultry is hung in the mobile processing unit such that the carcass, meat or poultry does not touch the floor of the mobile processing unit or touch any other carcass, meat or poultry; and*

*4. Ensure that each carcass, meat or poultry is tagged pursuant to section 23 of this regulation and NAC 583.390 and 583.410.*

**Sec. 20.** *A person holding a license to operate a mobile processing unit issued pursuant to section 13 of this regulation shall comply with the following standards:*

*1. The mobile processing unit must be thoroughly cleaned between each slaughter site or daily, whichever occurs first.*

*2. All surfaces of equipment and utensils must be cleaned and sanitized as necessary to prevent unsanitary conditions and adulteration.*

*3. All equipment, utensils and other surfaces that are in contact with food must be cleaned, rinsed and sanitized before and after each slaughter.*

*4. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5, surfaces of utensils and equipment that contact potentially hazardous food must be cleaned every 4 hours.*

*5. Surfaces of utensils and equipment that contact potentially hazardous food may be cleaned less than every 4 hours if:*

*(a) The utensils and equipment are used in a refrigerated room or area that is maintained at one of the temperatures set forth in and in accordance with the requirements of subsection 6; and*

*(b) The cleaning frequency of such utensils and equipment is documented in the standard operating procedures for sanitation of the mobile processing unit.*

*6. Any utensil or equipment that is maintained in a refrigerated room:*

*(a) At 41 degrees Fahrenheit or below must be cleaned every 24 hours.*

*(b) Between 42 and 45 degrees Fahrenheit must be cleaned every 20 hours.*

*(c) Between 46 and 50 degrees Fahrenheit must be cleaned every 16 hours.*

*(d) Between 51 and 55 degrees Fahrenheit must be cleaned every 10 hours.*

*7. Inedible articles of a carcass must be placed in containers designated for such articles and must be clearly labeled “Inedible Not for Human Consumption” in letters not less than 4 inches in height. A container designated for inedible articles must be kept clean and separate from edible carcasses. Any inedible articles, including, without limitation, specified risk materials, must be disposed of in accordance with 9 C.F.R. §§ 303.1(b)(4), 325.11(a) and 381.193(a).*

*8. Any aprons, frocks and other outer clothing that is worn by a person who handles meat must be kept clean and be made of material that is easy to clean.*

*9. Any person entering a mobile processing unit shall:*

*(a) Take all measures necessary to prevent contamination of carcasses from fecal material, ingesta, milk, perspiration, hair, cosmetics, medications and similar substances;*

*(b) Not eat or drink in the processing area;*

*(c) Not use tobacco, e-cigarettes or vapes in the slaughter and processing areas; and*

*(d) Use handwashing facilities as needed to maintain good personal hygiene.*

*10. A person shall not participate in slaughtering at a mobile processing unit if the person has a communicable disease, is the carrier of a disease, is infected with boils, has an infected wound, has a sore or has an acute respiratory infection.*

*11. The area immediately surrounding the operational site of a mobile processing unit must be maintained to prevent insanitary conditions and contain blood or any other waste products from slaughter to avoid the contamination of any water sources or run-off onto adjacent property.*

*12. Any packaging materials and ingredients used in a mobile processing unit must be stored in a sanitary manner, labeled and protected from contamination. Such materials and ingredients may not be stored on the floor of a mobile processing unit.*

**Sec. 21.** *1. The owner and the employees of a mobile processing unit shall ensure that carcasses are protected from adulteration during the processing, handling, storage, loading, unloading and transportation of such carcasses to a custom processing establishment.*

*2. No person shall slaughter meat or poultry in a mobile processing unit while other carcasses are hanging therein, unless the area in which the carcasses are situated is separated by a physical barrier from the area used for slaughter.*

*3. No carcass may be dressed or transported in a mobile processing unit with the hide on, unless the carcass is that of a swine that was scalded and dehaired.*

**Sec. 22.** *1. A custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit must:*

*(a) Prepare meat food products in compliance with 9 C.F.R. § 303.1(a)(2)(i); and*

*(b) Comply with the provisions of 9 C.F.R. §§ 416.1 to 416.6, inclusive, except for the provisions of 9 C.F.R. § 416.2(g)(2)-(6).*

*2. A custom processing establishment that custom processes livestock in a federal- or state-inspected establishment must comply with the provisions of 9 C.F.R. Part 416.*

*3. A custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit that custom processes poultry must comply with the sanitary standards, practices and procedures set forth in 9 C.F.R. § 381.10(a)(4).*

**Sec. 23.** *Any person who holds a license to operate a custom processing establishment issued pursuant to section 13 of this regulation shall:*



*1. Tag each carcass, meat or poultry and the parts therefrom with a “Not For Sale” tag in accordance with the provisions of 9 C.F.R. § 316.16; and*

*2. Keep any product for custom processing separate from any other products that are subject to inspection.*

**Sec. 24.** *1. An inspector shall mark any equipment, utensil, room or compartment at any official establishment, custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit that is not sanitary or could adulterate a product with a “Nevada Rejected” tag.*

*2. Any equipment, utensils, rooms or compartments marked with a “Nevada Rejected” tag may not be used until an inspector performs another inspection and finds the equipment, utensil, room or compartment is in compliance with the provisions of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation.*

*3. Only an inspector may remove a “Nevada Rejected” tag.*

**Sec. 25.** *The Department may detain or embargo any meat or poultry in a custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit for which a license was issued pursuant to section 13 of this regulation if:*

*1. The meat or poultry does not have proper identification; or*

*2. The meat or poultry does not comply with the requirements of this chapter.*

**Sec. 26.** *1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3, each person issued a permit or license to operate an official establishment, custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit shall comply with the Humane Methods of Slaughter Act of 1978, 7 U.S.C. §§ 1901 et seq., 21 U.S.C. § 458(a)(1) and 9 C.F.R. § 381.65(b), as applicable.*

*2. A custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit that slaughters poultry must follow good commercial practices for the slaughtering of poultry.*

3. *A person who wishes to slaughter an animal in accordance with religious dietary laws must request an exemption in writing from the Department before he or she may slaughter the animal.*

4. *The Department shall refuse to provide inspection services or temporarily suspend inspection services if an official establishment, custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit handles or slaughters animals in violation of the Humane Methods of Slaughter Act of 1978, 7 U.S.C. §§ 1901 et seq.*

**Sec. 27.** 1. *Any person who holds a license to operate a custom processing establishment or a mobile processing unit pursuant to section 13 of this regulation shall maintain accurate records that disclose all business transactions subject to the provisions of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation.*

2. *Any person who engages in the custom processing of livestock shall keep records in accordance with the provisions of 9 C.F.R. § 303.1(b)(3) and 9 C.F.R. Part 320.*

3. *Any person who engages in the custom processing of poultry shall keep records in accordance with the provisions of 9 C.F.R. Part 381, Subpart Q.*

4. *Except as otherwise provided in subsections 5 and 6, the records required to be maintained pursuant to this section must be maintained in a safe location at the place of business of the person required to keep such records.*

5. *If the business operates in multiple locations, the records required to be maintained pursuant to this section must be maintained in a safe location at the headquarters of the business.*

6. *Any records maintained pursuant to this section concerning ground beef must be kept at the location where the raw beef is ground.*

7. *Any records maintained pursuant to this section must be maintained for the period of time required by to NRS 583.485.*

8. *Pursuant to NRS 583.485, the Department may, at reasonable times, access the records maintained pursuant to this section and must be afforded access to the necessary facilities for the examination and copying of records and for the examination and sampling of inventory.*

**Sec. 28.** 1. *The Department may issue a written warning to a person who holds a license to operate a custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit issued pursuant to section 13 of this regulation if the licensee is suspected of repeated violations of any provisions of this chapter or chapter 583 of NRS, as determined by the Department.*

2. *The written warning must, without limitation:*

(a) *Specify each violation;*

(b) *Provide the licensee with an opportunity to correct the violation and set forth the date by which the violation must be corrected; and*

(c) *Notify the licensee of the right of the licensee to request a hearing pursuant to subsection 3 of section 29 of this regulation.*

3. *The Department may conduct an inspection to determine whether the violation was corrected pursuant to subsection 2. The fee for such an inspection is \$500. If the licensee fails to pay such a fee within 60 days after the inspection, the Department may suspend the license of the licensee pursuant to section 29 of this regulation.*

**Sec. 29.** 1. *The Department may suspend a license issued pursuant to section 13 of this regulation if:*

(a) *The Department has reason to believe that an imminent public health hazard exists.*

*(b) The custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit of a licensee is insanitary such that any carcass processed at the establishment or unit would be adulterated or contaminated.*

*(c) A licensee interferes with the performance of the duties of the Department.*

*(d) A licensee violates any provision of this chapter.*

*(e) A licensee has not made a custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit available for inspection upon a reasonable request from the Department.*

*(f) A licensee has not corrected a violation by the date set forth in the written warning issued pursuant to section 28 of this regulation.*

*(g) The Department finds insanitary conditions, insanitary practices, adulterated products or misbranded products in a custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit that violate the Poultry Products Inspection Act, 21 U.S.C. §§ 451 et seq. The suspension of a license pursuant to this paragraph must comply with the applicable rules of practice set forth in 9 C.F.R. Part 500.*

*2. If a license is suspended pursuant to subsection 1, the Department shall notify the licensee in writing. The notice must include a statement informing the licensee that he or she may request a hearing pursuant to subsection 3.*

*3. Any licensee whose license is suspended pursuant to subsection 1 or a licensee who is issued a written warning pursuant to section 28 of this regulation may request in writing a hearing before the Department.*

*4. A licensee whose license is suspended pursuant to subsection 1 may apply to the Department for reinstatement of the license. The Department shall reevaluate the applicant and determine whether the applicant has corrected the violations that were the basis for the*

*suspension. The Department may charge the applicant a reinstatement fee of \$250. Upon payment of the fee and approval from the Department, the Department shall reinstate the license.*

**Sec. 30.** NAC 583.010 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.010 Definitions, labeling and the composition of meat and products not otherwise defined must be as described in the Regulations Governing Meat Inspection of the *United States* Department of Agriculture, 9 C.F.R. ~~[Part]~~ *Parts 301 and* 319.

**Sec. 31.** NAC 583.020 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.020 1. Each ~~[approved slaughter or processing]~~ *official* establishment must be issued a number for use on a stamp. Sufficient stamps bearing this number and the name of the plant must be provided.

2. Stamps must be affixed only by an authorized inspector. Stamps must remain in the possession of the authorized inspector at all times.

3. No other stamp may be used by an *official* establishment other than the approved stamp.

4. Stamps must be surrendered to the ~~[Board of Health]~~ *Department* when approved inspection services are withdrawn.

*5. As used in this section, "official establishment" has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 538.375.*

**Sec. 32.** NAC 583.030 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.030 The approved stamp authorized by NAC 583.020 must be the stamp of the Meat *and Poultry* Inspection ~~[Division]~~ *Program* of the *United States* Department of Agriculture indicating that the meat , ~~[or]~~ meat *food* product , *poultry or poultry food product* has been processed, inspected and is in full compliance with Regulations Governing Meat Inspection of

the *United States* Department of Agriculture or the approved stamp of Nevada indicating processing in accordance with NAC 583.211 to ~~583.500,~~ 583.530, inclusive ~~1,~~ and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation.

**Sec. 33.** NAC 583.040 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.040 Game and similar uninspected products are not to be stored before processing or processed with inspected meat products ~~1~~ or poultry products. These products must be cleaned, prepared for processing and stored in a plant. These products must be handled and processed separately from other meats and foods.

**Sec. 34.** NAC 583.050 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.050 The term “adulterated” applies to any carcass, part thereof, meat, ~~or~~ meat food product, poultry or poultry food product which:

1. Bears or contains any poisonous or deleterious substance which may render it injurious to health. If the substance is not an added substance, the article is not considered adulterated if the quantity of the substance in or on the article does not ordinarily render it injurious to health.
2. Bears or contains, by reason of the administration of any substance to the live animal or otherwise, any added poisonous or added deleterious substance, other than one which is:
  - (a) A pesticide chemical in or on a raw agricultural commodity;
  - (b) A food additive; or
  - (c) A color additive, which may, in the judgment of the State ~~Health~~ Quarantine Officer, make the article unfit for human food.
3. Is, in whole or in part, a raw agricultural commodity and the commodity bears or contains a pesticide chemical which is unsafe within the meaning of section 408 of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act.

4. Bears or contains any food additive which is unsafe within the meaning of section 409 of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act.

5. Bears or contains any color additive which is unsafe within the meaning of section ~~706~~ **721** of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act if an article which is not adulterated under subsections 3 to 5, inclusive, is adulterated if use of the pesticide chemical, food additive or color additive in or on the article is prohibited by the regulations of the ~~Board of Health~~ **Department** in establishments at which inspections are conducted.

6. Consists, in whole or in part, of any filthy, putrid or decomposed substance or is for any other reason unsound, unhealthful, unwholesome or otherwise unfit for human food.

7. Has been prepared, packed or held under unsanitary conditions where it may have become contaminated with filth or where it may have been rendered injurious to health.

8. Is, in whole or in part, the product of an animal which has died other than by slaughter.

9. Is in a container composed, in whole or in part, of any poisonous or deleterious substance which may render the contents injurious to health.

10. Has been intentionally subjected to radiation, unless the use of the radiation was in conformity with a regulation or exemption in effect pursuant to section 409 of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act.

11. Has a valuable element that has been, in whole or in part, omitted or abstracted from it, any substance has been substituted, wholly or in part, for it, damage to it or inferiority has been concealed in any manner, or any substance has been added to it, mixed or packed, to increase its bulk or weight, reduce its quality or strength or make it appear better or of greater value than it is.

12. Is margarine containing animal fat and any of the raw material used therein consisting in whole or in part of any filthy, putrid or decomposed substance.

**Sec. 35.** NAC 583.070 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.070 1. Poultry for sale, shipment or distribution in Nevada must be from establishments approved and in compliance with the Poultry Products Inspection Act of the *United States* Department of Agriculture, and the regulations concerning food and drink establishments in chapter 446 of NAC. Poultry or containers containing poultry must be labeled indicating processing in an approved plant in Nevada, or from a plant approved and on the current list of approved plants of the *United States* Department of Agriculture.

2. Poultry must be handled and prepared separately from other meat products in retail establishments.

3. Rabbits, pheasants, pigeons and similar products not under the federal inspection program must be from an approved plant in compliance with chapter 446 of NRS, and must be inspected and labeled as required for other meat products.

**Sec. 36.** NAC 583.231 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.231 “Color additive” means a material which:

1. Is a dye, pigment or other substance made by a process of synthesis or similar article, or extracted, isolated, or otherwise derived, with or without intermediate or final change of identity, from a vegetable, animal, mineral or other source; and

2. When added or applied to a food, drug or cosmetic, or to the human body or any part thereof, is capable, alone or through a reaction with another substance, of imparting color thereto. The term does not include any material which the Secretary of Agriculture ~~is~~ *of the*



*United States*, by regulation, determines is used, or intended to be used, solely for a purpose or purposes other than coloring.

**Sec. 37.** NAC 583.350 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.350 The provisions of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, *and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation* provide for:

1. The mandatory inspection of the slaughter of cattle, sheep, swine, goats , ~~and~~ equines ~~and~~ and *poultry and* the preparation of carcasses, parts of carcasses, meat , ~~and~~ meat food products of the animals ~~and~~ , *poultry and poultry food products of the animals*, solely for distribution in Nevada;
2. The regulation of related industries; and
3. Cooperation with the *United States* Department of Agriculture.

**Sec. 38.** NAC 583.370 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.370 The ~~Board of Health~~ *Department* may employ or approve employment of veterinary inspectors, lay inspectors or contract with private veterinarians or lay inspectors skilled or trained in the inspection of meat and animals to supervise sanitation and perform examinations at approved slaughtering establishments. These assigned representatives are responsible for sanitation in the plant where they are assigned. They shall enforce the provisions of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, *and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation* and affix the required stamps of approval of meat and meat products in the assigned plant.

**Sec. 39.** NAC 583.380 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.380 1. The Officer shall appoint inspectors to make examinations and inspections of all cattle, sheep, swine, goats, horses, mules , ~~and~~ other equines ~~and~~ *and poultry*, of all carcasses and parts thereof, of all meat , ~~and~~ meat food products, *poultry and poultry food products* and

of the *humane handling and* sanitary conditions of all *official establishments, custom processing* establishments *or mobile processing units* in which the meat, ~~and~~ meat food products, *poultry and poultry food products* are prepared.

2. The inspectors shall refuse to stamp, mark, tag or label any carcass or any part thereof, or meat food product *or poultry food product* prepared in any *official establishment, custom processing* establishment ~~and~~ *or mobile processing unit* until they have actually been inspected and found to be not adulterated.

3. The inspectors shall perform any other duties provided by NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive ~~and~~, *and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation.*

4. All inspections and examinations made pursuant to NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, *and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation,* must be made in the manner prescribed by the Officer.

**Sec. 40.** NAC 583.390 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.390 1. For any examination and inspection, the inspectors must have access at all times, whether or not the *official establishment, custom processing* establishment *or mobile processing unit* is operating, to every part of the *official establishment, custom processing* establishment ~~and~~ *or mobile processing unit, as applicable.*

2. The inspectors shall mark, stamp, tag or label as “Nevada Inspected and Passed” all products *for use in intrastate commerce* found to be not adulterated.

3. The inspectors shall label, mark, stamp or tag as “Nevada Inspected and Condemned” all products *for use in intrastate commerce* found to be adulterated. All condemned meat food products *and poultry food products* must be destroyed for food purposes.

4. The Officer may remove inspectors from any *official establishment, custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit* who fail to destroy any condemned meat food products ~~or poultry food products.~~

**Sec. 41.** NAC 583.400 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.400 1. ~~Each~~ *Each official establishment shall ensure an* antemortem examination ~~is~~ made of all cattle, sheep, swine, goats or other meat food animals before slaughter.

This examination must be on the day of slaughter, in pens on the premises.

2. Horses, mules or burros must not be slaughtered in the same *official* establishment as other animals for human consumption.

3. Each ~~slaughter~~ *official* establishment must obtain the current Regulations Governing Meat Inspection of the *United States* Department of Agriculture and at all times have a copy of this booklet on the premises. The regulations regarding definitions, composition and labeling apply.

4. ~~[Diseased animals, carcasses and parts must be disposed of according to the Regulations Governing Meat Inspection of the Department of Agriculture.]~~ *Any animal that is suspected of being infected with any disease or that shows symptoms of disease must be kept separate from other livestock and poultry and may not be slaughtered until the animal has been found fit for slaughter by veterinary inspection. If an animal is showing symptoms of disease, the animal must be slaughtered separately from other livestock and poultry after the animal has been found fit for slaughter by veterinary inspection.*

5. Slaughtered animals must be cleaned and suspended from an overhead rail, then dressed, examined, prepared and processed, as described in Regulations Governing Meat Inspection of the *United States* Department of Agriculture. When the processing and examination of the

animal has been completed, the acceptable carcasses and all primal cuts must be stamped with the authorized inspection stamp and numbered by the authorized inspector of the particular establishment.

**Sec. 42.** NAC 583.410 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.410 1. The Officer shall appoint inspectors to make a postmortem examination and inspection of the carcasses and parts of all cattle, sheep, swine, goats, horses, mules , ~~and~~ other equines ~~;~~ *and poultry*, capable of use as human food, to be prepared at any slaughtering, meat canning, salting, packing, rendering or similar establishment in this State if these articles are prepared solely for intrastate commerce.

2. The carcasses and parts of all such animals found to be not adulterated must be marked, stamped, tagged or labeled as ~~["Inspected"]~~ *"Nevada Inspected* and Passed."

3. The inspectors shall label, mark, stamp or tag as ~~["Inspected"]~~ *"Nevada Inspected* and Condemned" all carcasses and parts of animals found to be adulterated.

4. All carcasses and parts thereof inspected and condemned must be destroyed for food purposes by the *official* establishment in the presence of an inspector.

5. The Officer may remove inspectors from any *official* establishment which fails to destroy any condemned carcass or part thereof.

6. The inspectors, after the first inspection, shall, when they deem it necessary, reinspect the carcasses or parts thereof to determine whether, since the first inspection, they have become adulterated. If any carcass or any part thereof has upon an examination and inspection subsequent to the first examination and inspection, been found to be adulterated, it must be destroyed for food purposes by the *official* establishment in the presence of an inspector. The

Officer may remove inspectors from any *official* establishment which fails to destroy any condemned carcass or part thereof.

*7. Any meat or poultry which is not fit for human consumption must be denatured or destroyed, as approved by the Department.*

**Sec. 43.** NAC 583.420 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.420 The Officer must order an examination and inspection of all cattle, sheep, swine, goats, horses, mules , ~~and~~ other equines ~~;~~ *and poultry*, and the food products thereof, slaughtered and prepared in establishments for the purpose of intrastate commerce to be made during the nighttime as well as during the daytime when the slaughtering of cattle, sheep, swine, goats, horses, mules , ~~and~~ other equines ~~;~~ *and poultry*, or the preparation of food products is conducted during the nighttime.

**Sec. 44.** NAC 583.430 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.430 1. The Officer shall order inspections made, by experts in sanitation or by other competent inspectors, of all slaughtering, ~~meat~~ canning, salting, packing, rendering or similar establishments in which cattle, sheep, swine, goats, horses, mules and other equines are slaughtered and the meat , ~~and~~ meat food products , *poultry and poultry food products* are prepared solely for intrastate commerce.

2. These inspections may be made as necessary to inform the Officer of the sanitary conditions.

3. The Officer shall prescribe the conditions of sanitation under which ~~the~~ *official* establishments must be maintained.

4. If the sanitary conditions of any *official* establishment are such that the meat , ~~or~~ meat food products , *poultry or poultry food products* are rendered adulterated, the Officer shall

refuse to allow the meat , ~~or~~ meat food products , *poultry or poultry food products* to be labeled, marked, stamped or tagged as “Nevada Inspected and Passed.”

*5. All custom processing establishments and mobile processing units subject to the provisions of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation, must be kept in a clean and sanitary condition during all periods of operation.*

*6. In addition to any sanitary requirements set forth in this chapter, the Department may prescribe additional sanitary standards and require sanitary inspections of any custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit.*

*7. The Officer or the Department may withdraw inspection services from any custom processing establishment or mobile processing unit that the Officer or Department determines does not comply with the appropriate sanitary standards.*

**Sec. 45.** NAC 583.440 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.440 1. When any meat , ~~or~~ meat food product , *poultry or poultry food product* prepared for intrastate commerce has been inspected and marked “Nevada Inspected and Passed” and is placed or packed in any can, pot, tin, canvas or other receptacle or covering in any *official* establishment where the inspection is conducted, the person preparing the product must attach a label to the can, pot, tin, canvas or other receptacle or covering, under the supervision of an inspector. The label must state that the contents have been “Nevada Inspected and Passed” under the provisions of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive ~~and~~ , *and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation.*

2. No inspection and examination of meat , ~~or~~ meat food products , *poultry or poultry food products* deposited or enclosed in cans, tins, pots, canvas or other receptacle or covering in any *official* establishment where the inspection is conducted is complete until the meat , ~~or~~

meat food products , *poultry or poultry food products* have been sealed or enclosed in the can, tin, pot, canvas or other receptacle or covering under the supervision of an inspector.

3. All carcasses, parts of carcasses, meat , ~~and~~ meat food products , *poultry or poultry food products* inspected at any *official* establishment and found to be not adulterated, must, at the time they leave the *official* establishment ~~and~~ bear, in distinctly legible form, directly on it or on their containers, as the Officer may require, the information required under NAC 583.410.

4. The Officer, whenever he or she determines action is necessary for the protection of the public, may prescribe:

(a) The styles and sizes of type to be used with respect to material required to be incorporated in labeling to avoid the false or misleading labeling of any articles or animals.

(b) Definitions and standards of identity or composition for articles and standards for filling containers for the articles which are not consistent with any standards established under the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act , ~~or~~ under the Federal Meat Inspection Act ~~and~~ *or under the Poultry Products Inspection Act*. There must be consultation between the Officer and the Secretary of Agriculture of the United States before the issuance of the standards to avoid inconsistency between the standards and the federal standards.

5. No article may be sold or offered for sale by any person in intrastate commerce, under any name or other marking or labeling, which is false or misleading, or in any container of a misleading form or size. Established trade names and other marking and labeling and containers which are not false or misleading and which are approved by the Officer are permitted.

6. If the Officer has reason to believe that any marking or labeling or the size or form of any container in use or proposed for use with respect to any article is false or misleading, the Officer may direct that the use be withheld unless the marking, labeling or container is modified in such

a manner that it will not be false or misleading. If the person using or proposing to use the marking, labeling or container does not accept the determination of the Officer, the person may request a hearing. The use of the marking, labeling or container must, if the Officer directs, be withheld pending hearing and a final determination by the Officer. Any determination by the Officer is subject to judicial review.

*7. Custom processing products must be labeled "Not For Sale."*

*8. Shipping containers carrying poultry food products exempt from this chapter must be marked with the name and address of the owner and the statement "Exempt P.L. 90492."*

**Sec. 46.** NAC 583.450 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.450 1. The provisions of NAC 583.380 to 583.460, inclusive, *and section 24 of this regulation*, apply to all carcasses or parts of carcasses of cattle, sheep, swine, goats, horses, mules, ~~and~~ other equines ~~and~~ *poultry*, or the meat, ~~or~~ meat *food* products, *poultry or poultry food products* thereof, capable of use as human food, which may be brought into any ~~slaughtering, meat~~ canning, salting, packing, rendering or similar *official* establishment, where inspection is maintained.

2. The examination and inspection must be made before the carcasses or parts thereof are allowed to enter into any department where they are to be treated and prepared for meat food products ~~and~~ *or poultry food products*.

3. The provisions of NAC 583.380 to 583.460, inclusive, *and section 24 of this regulation*, also apply to all products which, after having been issued from any slaughtering, ~~meat~~ canning, salting, packing, rendering or similar establishment, are returned and an inspection is maintained.

4. The Officer may limit the entry of carcasses, parts of carcasses, meat, ~~and~~ meat food products ~~and~~, *poultry or poultry food products*, and other materials into any *official*



establishment at which an inspection is maintained, under such conditions as the Officer may prescribe to assure that allowing the entry of the articles into inspected establishments will be consistent with the purposes of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive ~~§~~, *and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation.*

*5. No carcass, animal, meat, meat food product, poultry or poultry food product that was not prepared in accordance with the provisions of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation, may enter or be inspected at any official establishment.*

**Sec. 47.** NAC 583.460 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.460 1. No brand manufacturer, printer or other person may cast, print, lithograph or otherwise make any device containing any official mark or imitation, or any label bearing any mark or imitation or any form of official certificate or imitation except as authorized by the Officer.

2. No person may:

- (a) Forge any official device, mark or certificate;
- (b) Without authorization from the Officer, use any official device, mark, certificate or imitation, or alter, detach, deface or destroy any official device, mark or certificate;
- (c) Contrary to the regulations prescribed by the Officer, fail to use, detach, deface or destroy any official device, mark or certificate;
- (d) Knowingly possess, without promptly notifying the Officer or his or her representative, any official device or any counterfeit, simulated, forged or improperly altered official mark;
- (e) Knowingly make any false statement in any shipper's certificate or other nonofficial or official certificate provided for in the regulations prescribed by the Officer; or

(f) Knowingly represent that any article has been inspected and passed or exempted when it has not been inspected, passed or exempted.

*3. No person may offer for sale or transportation any meat, meat food product, poultry or poultry food product subject to the provisions of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation, unless such products and any containers used for such products are labeled in accordance with the provisions of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation.*

**Sec. 48.** NAC 583.470 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.470 1. The Officer may, for such period as the Officer deems necessary to effectuate the purposes of NAC 583.211 to 538.530, inclusive, *and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation*, refuse to provide or withdraw inspection services for any *official establishment, custom processing* establishment *or mobile processing unit* if he or she determines, after opportunity for a hearing is accorded to the applicant for, or recipient of, the service, that the applicant or recipient is unfit to engage in any business requiring inspection because the applicant or recipient, or anyone responsibly connected with the applicant or recipient has been convicted in any federal or state court, of:

(a) A felony; or

(b) More than one violation of any law, other than a felony, based upon the acquiring, handling or distributing of unwholesome, mislabeled or deceptively packaged food or upon fraud in connection with transactions in food.

2. This section does not affect other provisions for the withdrawal of inspection services from establishments failing to maintain sanitary conditions or to destroy condemned carcasses, parts, meat , ~~or~~ meat food products ~~or~~, *poultry or poultry food products*.

3. For the purpose of this section, a person is responsibly connected with the business if the person was a partner, officer, director, holder or owner of at least 10 percent of its voting stock or employee in a managerial or executive capacity. The determination and order of the Officer under this section is final and conclusive unless the affected applicant for, or recipient of, inspection services files an application for judicial review.

**Sec. 49.** NAC 583.480 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.480 1. Any person, or any agent or employee of any person, who gives, pays or offers, directly or indirectly, to any inspector, deputy inspector, chief inspector, or any other officer or employee of this State authorized to perform any of the duties prescribed by NRS 583.255 to 583.555, inclusive, or by the regulations of the ~~[Board of Health,]~~ *Department or the Officer*, any money or other thing of value, with an intent to influence the inspector, deputy inspector, chief inspector, or other officer or employee of this State in the discharge of any duty, is subject to prosecution for bribery ~~[ ]~~ *pursuant to NRS 583.543*.

2. Any inspector, deputy inspector, chief inspector or other officer or employee of this State authorized to perform any of the duties prescribed by NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, *and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation*, who accepts any money, gift or other thing of value from any person or the officers, agents or employees of the person, given with an intent to influence his or her official action, or who receives or accepts from any person engaged in intrastate commerce any gift, money or other thing of value given with any purpose or intent, is subject to prosecution for bribery *pursuant to NRS 583.543* and, upon conviction, will be summarily discharged from office.

**Sec. 50.** NAC 583.490 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.490 1. Any carcass, part of a carcass, meat or meat food product of cattle, sheep, swine, goats, horses, mules or other equines, *poultry or poultry food product*, or any dead, dying, disabled or diseased cattle, sheep, swine, goat, ~~or~~ equine ~~or~~ *poultry*, that is being transported in intrastate commerce, or is held for sale in this State after transportation and that:

(a) Is or has been prepared, sold, transported or otherwise distributed or offered or received for distribution in violation of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive ~~or~~, *and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation;*

(b) Is capable of use as human food and is adulterated or misbranded; or

(c) In any other way is in violation of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, *and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation*, may be proceeded against and seized and condemned, by any court of competent jurisdiction.

2. If the article or animal is condemned, it must, after entry of the decree, be disposed of by destruction or sale as the court may direct.

3. In no case may the article or animal be sold contrary to the provisions of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, *and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation*, the Federal Meat Inspection Act, *the Poultry Products Inspection Act* or the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act.

4. The provisions of this section do not limit the authority for condemnation or seizure conferred by other provisions of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, *and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation*, or other laws.

**Sec. 51.** NAC 583.510 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.510 1. ~~[The Officer will cooperate with the Secretary of Agriculture under the provisions of Section 301 of the Federal Meat Inspection Act in developing and administering~~

~~the program for inspecting meat in this State to assure that not later than November 15, 1969, the program's requirements will be at least equal to those imposed under Titles I and IV of the Federal Meat Inspection Act and in developing and administering the program in a manner that will effectuate the purposes of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, and the Federal Act.~~

~~—2.]~~ In cooperative efforts, the Officer will accept from the Secretary ~~[.]~~ *of Agriculture of the United States Department of Agriculture* advisory assistance in planning and developing the State's program, technical and laboratory assistance and training, including necessary curricular and instructional materials and equipment, and financial and other aid for the administration of the program.

~~[3.]~~ 2. The Officer shall recommend to the Secretary of Agriculture *of the United States Department of Agriculture* officials or employees of Nevada designated by the Officer, for appointment to the advisory committees provided for in Section ~~[304]~~ 661 of the Federal Meat Inspection Act. The Officer shall serve as consultant with the Secretary under ~~[paragraph (e) of]~~ Section ~~[304]~~ 661 of the Act.

Sec. 52. NAC 583.520 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.520 1. The cooperative agreement between the ~~[Health Division of the Department of Health and Human Services]~~ *Department* and the ~~[Consumer and]~~ *Agricultural* Marketing Service of the *United States* Department of Agriculture contemplates that the status of slaughter and processing plants in Nevada will be equal to those required at plants under federal inspection. To accomplish this, the ~~[Board of Health]~~ *Department* hereby adopts ~~[as regulations]~~ *by reference the following regulations, as such regulations existed on January 1, 2022, and, except as otherwise provided in subsection 5, as subsequently revised,* the applicable sections of  
:

(a) Part ~~302~~ 300 to Part ~~320~~ 500, inclusive, of the Regulations Governing Meat Inspection of the *United States* Department of Agriculture ~~[-]~~, *excluding 9 C.F.R §§ 302.2, 303.1(c), 304.2(c), 307.4(b), (c) and (d), 307.5, 307.6, 316.13(c), 317.7, 318.8, 329.9, 381.38, 381.39, 381.104 to 381.107, inclusive, 381.195 to 381.209, inclusive, 381.218 to 381.225, inclusive, and Parts 322, 327, 331, 332, 335, 351, 390, 391 and 392.*

(b) *The Federal Meat Inspection Act, 21 U.S.C. §§ 601 to 676, inclusive, excluding sections 602, 609, 615 to 620, inclusive, 624, 625, 645, 661 and 674.*

(c) *The Poultry Products Inspection Act, 21 U.S.C. §§ 453 to 467b, inclusive, excluding sections 454, 463 and 466.*

(d) *The Humane Methods of Slaughter Act, 7 U.S.C. §§ 1901 et seq.*

2. *As used in the regulations adopted by reference pursuant to subsection 1, references to “We,” the “Food Safety and Inspection Service,” the “United States Department of Agriculture,” the “Department” or any label, mark or term are amended to refer to the state equivalent or counterpart.*

3. *The provisions of 9 C.F.R Parts 300 to 500, inclusive, are available, free of charge, from the United States Government Printing Office at the Internet website <https://www.ecfr.gov>.*

4. *The provisions listed in paragraphs (b), (c) and (d) of subsection 1 are available, free of charge, from the Office of the Law Revision Counsel of the United States House of Representatives at the Internet website <https://uscode.house.gov>.*

5. *If a provision adopted by reference pursuant to subsection 1 is revised, the Officer will review the revision to determine its suitability for this State. If the Officer determines that the revision is not suitable for this State, the Officer will hold a public hearing to review his or her*

*determination and give notice of the hearing within 6 months after the date of the revision. If, after the hearing, the Officer does not revise his or her determination, the Officer will give notice that the revision is not suitable for this State within 30 days after the hearing. If the Officer does not give such notice, the revision becomes part of the provision adopted by reference pursuant to subsection 1.*

**Sec. 53.** NAC 583.530 is hereby amended to read as follows:

583.530 1. The provisions requiring the inspection of the slaughter of animals and the preparation of the carcasses, parts thereof, meat , ~~and~~ meat food products , *poultry and poultry food products* at establishments conducting the operations do not apply to:

(a) The slaughtering by any person of animals the person raised; and

(b) The preparation by the person, and the transportation in intrastate commerce of the carcasses, parts thereof, meat , ~~and~~ meat food products , *poultry and poultry food products* of the animals exclusively for use by the person, members of his or her household and his or her nonpaying guests and employees.

2. The provisions requiring the inspection of the slaughter of animals and the preparation of carcasses, parts thereof, meat , ~~and~~ meat food products , *poultry and poultry food products* do not apply to operations traditionally and usually conducted at retail stores and restaurants, when conducted at any retail store or restaurant or similar retail establishment for sale in normal retail quantities or service of the articles to consumers at the establishments.

3. The slaughter of animals and the preparation of articles referred to in subsection 2 must be conducted in accordance with the sanitary conditions the Officer may prescribe by regulation. Violations of any regulation is prohibited.

4. The provisions concerning adulteration and misbranding, other than the requirement of the inspection legend, apply to articles not required to be inspected under NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive ~~1~~, *and sections 2 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation.*

*5. Except for any territorial exemption, any other exemption provided in section 623 of the Federal Meat Inspection Act and section 464 of the Poultry Products Inspection Act adopted by reference pursuant to NAC 583.520 apply to the provisions of NAC 583.211 to 583.530, inclusive, and sections 1 to 29, inclusive, of this regulation.*

**Sec. 54.** NAC 583.300 is hereby repealed.

#### **TEXT OF REPEALED SECTION**

**583.300** “Officer” defined. (NRS 583.535) “Officer” means the State Health Officer.